COPY

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI COURT OF APPEALS

Michael W. DAVIS

FILED

PETITIONER, APPEALLANT

2007-CP-00264-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

RESPONDENT, APPEllEE

BRIEF OF PETITIONER - APPEALLANT

ON APPEAL FROM the CIRCUIT COURT OF GUIFPORT MISSISSIPPLIEST JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF HARRISON COUNTY IN THE CAUSE Nº B2401-2003-373

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT AND JURISDICTION Ruling below:

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

- (1.) Wherther Counsel total Failure in Filing Motions when he was told to do so, or otherwise violated defendents Appenliant's Rights of Free Americans, those secured by the Fifth, sixth and Fourteenth Admendments of the Constitution of the United States of America, as well as those comparable rights secured by the 14 and 26, Articule 3, of the Mississippi Constitution of 1890.
- (2) Wherther ineffective Assistance of Coursel was indeed induced by an unwillingness to represent defendent-Appenliant, or due to conflict.
- (3) Wherther Counsel's Advice Prejudiced, defendent-Appenliant to ENTER Guilty Plea, (OPEN PLEA)
- (4) Wherther Counsel Should of Explained or advised defendent APPEALLANT OF his Rights when No one else had explained his Rights
 in Any way, NOR did he Fully understand these Charges against
 him or the Rights that he was intitle to by LAW.
- (5) Wherther Counsel devied DeFendent-Appellant any consideration before the Courts as to mitigation, either by counsel or by calling Character Withess's that was there at the of Plea and Sentencing.
- (6) Wherther CONNSEL VIOLATED UNIFORM RULES OF CIRCUIT COURT AND COURT PRACTICES RULE 8.04 by MEANS OF (FEAR, DECEPTION OR IMPROPER INDUCEMENT DURING All COURT HEARING'S
- (7) Wherther Counsel is ineffective Assistance of Counsel After a period of (2) two years. When counsel advised defendent that he would file Motion to get a time reduction, and that he would All of his good time would be put towards his New Sentence and he would be out in no time, but Failed to do so.
- (8) Wherther counsel was working in defendent-Appenliants behalf or was never concerned as to a justly outcome in the case.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

A. INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL

That counsel was told by defendent-Appeallant, on Many different occassions to file the proper Motion's in his behalf. Yet counsel Failure to do so violated Michael W. Davis Rights of Free Americans, those secured under the fifth, sixth, and Fourteenth Admendments to the Constitution of the United States, as well as those comparable Rights secured by the 14 and 26, Article 3 of the Mississippi — Constitution of 1890.

That counsel having common SENSE, OVER POWERED THE WILLOF DEFENDENT - APPEALIANT THROUgh out his ENTIRE ASSISTANCE GIVEN TO MICHAEL W. DAVIS.

That the counsel (MR. FRED LUSK) CORCED DEFENDENT-APPEALLANT to giving FAISELY STATEMENTS AS TO WHAT OCCURED ON July 31, 2002.

That counsel made No preprations for trail at any time, but land defendent - Appeallant to believe that he had.

That coursel acted under a conflict of interest during representing de-Fendent-Appellant when in Fact coursel should have withdrawn From case. Coursel (MR. Lusk stated I can't walk around telling other's that the police Shot you while you were sitting down (3) three times then putting handcuffs on you, kicked and beated you up on the side of the Road if true) This was a layed out statement from the start by counsel. Counsel expressed his discern to put defendent Appendiant on the trail stand to give testimony to these important Facts of the case.

FOR (18) Eighteen Months defendent-Appeallant sat in the HARRISON COUNTY JAIL AS A INMATE WAITING to go to trail and prove his innosense to the Court and people of the Jury and people in the STATE OF Mississippi. Counsel for the defendent-Appeallant, made no preprations for trail what so ever.

Counsel Never Explained to the defendent-Affeallant his Rights concer-Ning Anything, before any Court Appearence, during any suppost to be Court Appearence or After Any Court hearings that he was not excluded in.

Counsel took his time in wearing down the will of the defendent - Affeatlant about himself and as to the EVENTS that occurred on July 31, 2002.

That Counsel Changed the outcome with Falsely statements to incriminate defendent-Appenient saying (that no body would belive you, and later on saying you don't have any with ess that can be found) and with this statement you don't have a chance you must open with a plea of Guilty appendient. Counsel coerced, defendent-Appenient all the way into (35) years he recieved.

Counsel in no way acted in defendent-Appeallant's behalf before entering a plea. The state prosecutor and Counsel-Fred Lusk, knew very well of False testimony given, but Allowed this anyway without Allowing the Court to inspect this testimony as False.

Counsel in No way gave any Mitigation concerning defendent-Affeallant by him-SEIF NOR Allowed any From his Friends or Family that was in the courtroom at the time. And surely did not prepare For any Mitigation on this case be heard by Michael W. Davis, defendent-Appealiant.

INVOLUNTARY Guilty PLEA

That Counsel Advised defendent-Appenliant several times that if he would PLEA guilty that he would not recieve ANYMORE than (5) Five years ON All of the Charges together AND that AFTER he had (2) Two years under his belt that Counsel MR. FRED LUSK Would FILE A MOTION FOR A SENTENCE REduction AND that All OF his EARNED good time would go towards his sentence and that he would be out IN No time.

Counsel Failed to inform Michael W. DAVIS that under the Habitual OFF-ENDER SECTION 99-19-81 that he was Not Eliagable FOR any good time or Any-thing else that the DEPARTMENT OF CORREction Might have to OFFER.

Altogether counsel's Failure to do so violated defendent-Appealinat, (Michael W. DAVIS) Right to FREE AMERICANS, those secured by the Fifth, Sixth, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS OF the Constitution of the United STATES OF AMERICA, AS WELL AS those comparable Rights secured by 14 AND 26, ARTICLE
3 of the Mississippi Constitution of 1890.

COUNSEL NEVER FILED ANY MOTIONS IN A REDUCTION OF SENTENCE IN DEFEND ENT'S - APPEALLANT BEHAIF. COUNSEL WOULD NOT RECIEVE ANY PhONE CALLS NOR RETURNED ANY LETTER WRITTEN to him by Michael W. DAVIS AND CAROL REDMON .

IMPRODER INDICTMENT

COUNSEL'S FAILURE AMONG OTHER MOTIONS Allowed the State the IMPR-OPER INdictMENT AS CHARGED Also did deny Michael W. DAVIS'S RIGHT to FREEDOM OF AMERICANS, those SECURED by the FIFTH, Sixth, AND FOURTZENTH AMENDMENTS to the Constitution of the United STATES, AS WELL AS those Comparable Rights SECURED by 14 AND 26, ARTICLE 3 of the Mississippi Constitution of 1890.

These FACTS ARE SUPPORTED by (3) the AFFICAVITS, TWO by Michael W. DAVIS AND ONE by CAROL REDMON.

STATEMENT OF CASE

PREMLIMARY HEARING: ON OR About the Month of SEPTEMBER of 2002, Michael W. DAVIS ENTERED A PLEA OF "NOT Guilty" IN CIRCUIT COURT FIRST JUDICAL DISTRICT, HARRISON COUNTY, OF THE FORESAID CHARGES OF.

COUNT I MANUFACTURE OF A CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE SECTION 41-29-139(A)(1), Miss. Code of 1972, AND COUNT II AND COUNT III AGGRAVATED ASSAULT ON A PEACE OFFICER - TWO COUNTS, SECTION 97-3-7 (2) (b) Miss. Code of 1972. Michael W. DAVIS WAS RETURNED to the HARRISON COUNTY Jail where he REMAINED. COURT PROCEEDINGS WAS NEVER UNDERSTOOD by DEFENDENT - APPEALIANT NOR WERE they Explained by his Counsel MR. FRED LUSK AT ANYTIME DURING THE YEARS OF 2002,2003. MARCH TERM, A.D. 2003 CAUSE NO: B2401-2003-373

July 28, 2003 dated, thereafter, Michael W. DAVIS was served with Multi -COUNT INDICTMENT FROM the CIRCUIT COURT First Judicial District, HARRISON County.

COUNT I MANUFACTURE OF A CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE SECTION 41-29-139 (A) (1) MISS. CODE ANN OF 1972, AS AMENDED AS A HABITUAL OFFENDER SECTION 99-19-81 MISS .-Code of 1972 AMENDED.

STATEMENT OF CASE

Section 97-3-7 (2) (b) Miss. Code of 1972, AS AMENDED AS INDITUAL OFFENDER - SECTION 99-19-81 Miss. Code 1972 AS AMENDED.

COUNT TV POSSESSION OF A CONTROlled Substance Section 41-29-139(C)(1) Miss. Code of 1972 as amended as a Habitual Offender-Section 99-19-81 Miss.

Code of 1972 AS AMENDED.

Thereafter, Petitioner Entered a guilty Pea, as to Count I, Manufacture of a controlled Substance (Methamphetomine) Count II and Count III aggarded assualt on a Peace officer. Count II was passed out of the indictment and into the Files. Honorable Jerry O, Terry, sentenced petitioner Michael W. Davis, January 29, 2004 to serve (5) Five years in Count II consecutive with (30) thirty-years each in Count II and Count III (the later to run concurrently with each other), for a total of (35) thirty-five years to serve as a Mabitual Offender in the Custody of the Mississippi Department of Corrections. Michael W. Davis seeking reconsideration on February 9, 2004. Cause No. B2401-03-373 C
Michael W. Davis Filed his Motion For Post-Convection Collateral—

Michael W. DAVIS FILED his MOTION FOR POST-CONVECTION COLLATERAL -FORMA PAPER ENTITLED MARCH 15, 2007, AND WAS GRANTED. CAUSE NO.

A 20401-2006-00478.

NOTICE OF APPEAL, WAS ENTERED JANUARY 11, 2007, IN LIEU OF APPEAL BOND

Miss. Code ANN. Section 11-53-17; CAUSE NO: A2401-2006-00478.

IN RESPONSE of A LETTER FROM Michael W. DAVIS REQUESTING AN EXtention date From May 2, 2007 in CAUSE NO. 2007-CP-00264-COA was granted with a NEW date of August 2, 2007 in CAUSE NO. 2007-CP-00264 AND At this time Now A date due of October 5, 2007.

INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL

Michael W. DAVIS WAS NEVER WARNED OF his MIRANDA Rights At ANY time. NOT IN the hospital and not during the (18) Eighteen Month's he spent in the HARRISON County JAIL. The FIRST TIME HE (Michael W. DAVIS) WAS INTERROGATED (questioned) As to the events that happened July 31, 2002. He was unable to say or MAKE heads are tails but of anything. HE (Michael W. Davis) did not know what to say about being Faced with mosther officer of the Law, It is helieved at this time that Michael W. DAVIS GAVE A ORAL STATEMENT to the HARRISON COUNTY DETECTIVE AND ATTORNEY FRED LUSK. MR. FREDLUSK did WRITE down A STATEMENT HOWEVER; this was Not THE STATEMENT THAT MR. LUSK had Schooled Michael W. DAVIS to SAY. MR. LUSK SAID (You Must be quilty of something, EVEN IF you didn't KNOW John Cooper WAS doing in the back, it would be better for you to say you did KNOW, OR you took part with it (Crystalmeth). The jury would understand you belter and forgive you sooner if they understood). MR. Lusk using Mental Coercion Overbenking the will of the defendent "Argument of Authority" Cayler V. Sullivar, 446 U.S. 335, 346-47, 64 L. Ed. 333, 100 S. Ct. 1708 (1989), WHEN the defense Counsel has breached his duty of loyalty by actively representing CONFlicting INTRESTS AND THE CONFlict OF INTREST Adversely AFFECTS his PERFORMANCE then Prejudice is presumed. Cuyler V. Sullivan, 446 U.S. At [922] 348-50. SEE Also Strickland V. Washington, 466 U.S. 668,692,80 L.Ed. 2d 674,104 S. Ct. 2052(1984)

that Michael W. Davis was very vonorable to Suggestions. The officer in the Room at the hospital (Garden Park Hospital, Community Road Gulfport, Ms. 39520). Little by little Mr. Lusk had only one position to wear down using this Frame of Conversation (Arent you guilty of something, try and think Michael) Mr. Lusk contenued to take advantage of Michael W. Davis's Mental State of Affication and physical paid. January 26, 2004. After being detained in the Harrison County Jail (18) Eighteen Months.

MR. Lusk told Michael W. Davis, you don't have any withnesses for your defence. "Argument with Authority: Defendent who plead guilty to a crime is prejudged by his counsel's erropeous advice if he would have insisted on going to trail, and if he had correctly informed his client Amend 6 State (Miss. 1992) 605 So. 2d 1170 Criminal Law 641.13 (5). Defense counsel Fallure to prepare any defense would not constitute Indiffective Assistance of Counsel, If defendent had intended to plead guilty all along." Argument with Authority Admend 6 State (Miss. 1990) 560 So. 2d 148 Criminal Law 641.13 (2.1), BERNARdini V. STATE 2004, 2004, 872 So. 2d 640 Criminal Law 641.13 (2.1)

Michaelw. Davis has been making an actual innocence claim even when he was in the hospital and about the moith of Septeber 13,2002. Michael W. Davis entered a plea of Not Guilty to charges of Count I Manufactor of Controlled Substance. Section 41-29-139 (A) Miss. Code of 1972. Count II And Count III. Aggravated Assualt on a Peace officer Section 97-3-7(2)(b) Miss. Code 1972. The entire time Michael W. Davis was locked-up in the HARRISON County Jail he had constantly told his Counsel (Mr. Lusk) he was innocent of these charges and intended on going to trail.

Unnuary 26, 2004, Michael W. Davis gave a statement that was satis-

TANUARY 26, 2004, Michael W. DAVIS gave a Statement thatwas SATIS-FACTORY to MR. LUSK AND THE ACCOMPANIED DETECTIVE. MR. LUSK by WAYS AND MEANS USED MENTAL COERCION AND OVER-BEARING THE WILL OF MICHAELW. DAVIS INTO UNCERTAINTY MAKING him guilty of SOMETHING. MR. LUSK (SO that the JURY Would UNDERSTAND YOU better if you said that you did it EVEN IF YOU did'NT.) PRIOR to MANY GUESTIONING, A PERSON MUST be WARNED

that ?

(i) HE OR She has the Right to REMAIN SILENT

(2) ANY STATEMENT THEY SAY MAY BE USED AS EVIDENCE AGAINST THEM.

(3) HE has A Right to the PRESENCE OF A ATTORNEY.

(4) IF hE CAN NOT AFFORD ONE, the COURT will Appoint ONE FOR him.

(5) HE MAY REQUEST QUESTIONING to guit At ANYTIME.

(6) HE MAY WAIVE ANY OF these Rights.
Attorney Fred Lusk Failed to comply with the Rules and what about the Sentencing Judge. Much difference is placed upon the trail Judges Full discharge of his/her responsibility to Make Findings of Fact or question. Wherther Miranda Rights have been intentionally knowing and voluntarily determines the inadmissable of the Conflicting evidence. His Findings becomes a fact which will not be reversed on appeals unless it manifestly in Error or contrary to the overwelming weight of evidence. When a trail judge Fails to Make specific Findings and only makes general Findings thereby allowing admissibility of evidence, the appellate Court's scope of review is considerably broader particularly, when the trail judges Findings on the precise points at issue on appeal are not clearly interable From the finding made.

Michael W. Davis does not foresay this with any Supported Authority of

Michael W. DAVIS does NOT FORESAY this with ANY Supported Huthority of Claim, but Michael W. DAVIS does insist that his voluntariness of his Confession) was due to MR. Lusk's MISREPENTATION AND FAISELY Advising Michael W. DAVIS that this was Needed For a trail and that, MR. Lusk MISREPRENTATION AND ADVISING MICHAEL W. DAVIS (the jury will understand you better IF you

SAY that you helped or that you knew about John Cooper making Crystal Meth.) Michael W. Davis did not waive any of his Rights knowingly o
DN or about September 13, 2002 Michael W. Davis was taken to Court From the
HARRISON County Jail were he (Michael W. Davis) entered his Plea of not Guilty.
At this point shouldn't there have been a Motion for Pre-trail and Discovery
Made by Mr. Lusk For Michael W. Davis. Michael W. Davis had Already Made
Request for these things to be done. And would not this also be the propertime
For Mr. Lusk to make a Motion to have Michael W. Davis to have proceedings
postpond until a psychological examination before any future proceedings, beFore any line of questioning, Mr. Lusk Never explained about statements made
or explained about my Court hearings that went on. When questions or request
were given by Michael W. Davis, Mr. Lusk would say (dontworky about it)
Michael W. Davis entered a piea of Not Guilty white in the Custody at the Harrison
County Jail and awaiting trail to show his innocence before a jury. Neally

Nichaelw. Davis did told Mr. Lusk on several occassions For him to File A FAST AND SPEEdy trail, that just could not stay in jail. That he wanted to get this over and done with as soon as possiable. A motion for Discovery was requested on (6) six different occassions by the defendent Affeallant, - Michaelw. Davis. Throughout Michaelw. Davis's (18) Eighteen months awaiting to go to trail to prove his innocence, he repeatedly ask Mr. Lusk to bring to him a copy of the discovery. Mr. Lusk would answer (dont worry about it, I'll bring it the Next time). This was among other request that Michaelw. Davis had instructed Hr. Lusk to do so. Michaelw. Davis (What about my wittnesses), Lisa Magee and Christy Bond, they told me they have been trying to talk to you, but you are never in, Mr. Lusk (I Leave there a lot), Michaelw. Davis but why haven tyou returned any of there phone calls. Lisa Magee and Christy Bond can show you where the bullits are at. Where I Fired and every thing, Mr. Lusk-

(WE'VE got pleANTY OF TIME FOR All OF that, don't workey about it.

Michael W. DAVIS was denied his Right to call withvesses in his behalf. At the very least Mr. Lusk could have listened to the withvesses concerning testimony For trail that was set for trail. Michael W. DAVIS ENTERED a plea of Not Guilty on or about September 13, 2002, innocent of the Charges And he was waiting to go to trail and tell the truth as to what did happen on July 31, 2002.

IT is A good practice AND GENERAL RULE that was INTENTIONAL Spoliation or destruction of Evidence Relevant to a clase Raises presumption, OR MORE PROPERLY, AN INFERENCE, That THE EVIDENCE Would have been UNITAvorable to the case of the spollation or destruction was Intentional and indicates Fraud, and a desire to supress the truth, and it does not arise WHERE THE DESTRUCTION WAS A MATTER OF ROUTINE WITH NO FRAUDULENT INTENT. ARGUMENT WITH AUTHORITY: DAVIS V. STATE, 743 50. 2d 326, 324 (MISS. 1999) 71 Which the Court stated: while Attorneys will be granted wide discreption as to trail strategy, choosing offences and calling withnesses, a certain amount of investigation and preparation is required. Failure to call a withess may be Excussed based on the belief that the testimony will not be so helpful; such A belief in turn must be based on genuine Effort to locate or Evaluate the withess, and not on a mistaken Legal Notion or plain inaction". This court GRANTED DAVIS LEAVE to PROCEED ON that ISSUE WHERE THE ATTORNEY WAS CALL-Ed three wittnesses in sentencing, A Friend of DAVIS'S, DAVIS'S SISTER AND Mother. DAVIS Alleged that his trail Attorney did Not call Available Character WITTNESSES AND did NOT PREPARE THE ONES HE did CALL. AT MICHAELW. DAVIS'S SENTENCING PHASE, COUNSEL MR. FREDLUSK did NOT MAKE ANY EFFORT to locate OR

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