## IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

MICHAEL WAYNE DAVIS

**APPELLANT** 

FILED

VS.

SEP 2 1 2007

NO. 2007-CP-0264-COA

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: BILLY L. GORE

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

#

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

## SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

A plea of guilty is binding only if it is entered voluntarily and intelligently. Myers v. State, 583 So.2d 174, 177 (Miss. 1991). A plea of guilty is voluntary and intelligent when the defendant is informed of the charges against him and the consequences of his guilty plea. Alexander v. State, 605 So.2d 1170, 1172 (Miss. 1992).

He was.

Davis was more than adequately advised of the rights he was waiving or giving up by pleading guilty as well as the minimum and maximum sentence. (C.P. at 36-37)

In paragraph 12. of his petition to enter plea of guilty, Davis expressed complete satisfaction with the advice and help given by his lawyer. Davis also acknowledged that in the event he was told by his lawyer he might receive a light sentence, such was merely his lawyer's prediction which was not binding on the court. (C.P. at 37)

In paragraph 13, of the petition to enter plea of guilty, Davis told Judge Terry the following:

"I was making crystal when the police came and I ran from the building. I fired two shots during the shootout by the police. I did not aim at anyone. I got shot a number of times." (C.P. at 37)

Thus, there are material contradictions between what Davis swore to then and there, viz., satisfaction with his lawyer and a voluntary plea, and what he claims here and now, viz., dissatisfaction with his lawyer and a coerced plea.

When a defendant's claims on a motion to withdraw guilty plea are in contradiction with the guilty plea record, the trial judge, as Judge Terry obviously did here, is entitled to rely heavily on the record of the proceedings. **Bilbo v. State**, 881 So.2d 966 (Ct.App.Miss. 2004); **Richardson v. State**, 769 So.2d 230 (Ct.App.Miss. 2000). *Cf.* **Taylor v. State**, 682 So.2d 359, 364 (Miss. 1996); **Sherrod v. State**, 784 So.2d 256 (Ct.App.Miss. 2001).

Davis's pleas were both knowing and voluntary.

Davis's indictment was neither defective nor infirm; rather, it properly charged Davis with four individual counts as an habitual offender. (C.P. at 26-28)

Davis's voluntary plea(s) of guilty also waived all non-jurisdictional defects in his criminal indictment.

Also waived was Davis's right to have the prosecution prove each element of the offense

beyond a reasonable doubt, including the right to present any defense(s) he might have had to the charges. Bishop v. State, 812 So.2d 934, 945 (Miss. 2002); Anderson v. State, 577 So.2d 390, 391 (Miss. 1991); Jefferson v. State, 556 So.2d 1016, 1019 (Miss. 1989); Taylor v. State, 766 So.2d 830, 835 (Ct.App.Miss. 2000).

Davis was not denied the effective assistance of counsel during his guilty pleas because counsel's performance, contrary to Davis's position, was neither deficient nor did any deficiency prejudice Davis. In ruling on this issue Judge Terry applied the correct legal standard. **Strickland v. Washington**, 466 U.S. 668, 687, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984); **Williams v. State**, 819 So.2d 532 (Ct.App.Miss. 2001); **Reynolds v. State**, 736 So.2d 500 (Ct.App.Miss. 1999).

Davis has failed to demonstrate that but for counsel's alleged sins of omission or commission, he would not have entered his pleas of guilty or else the jury would have found him innocent had he gone to trial, i.e., the result would have been different.

Davis was well aware his plea was an open plea and that his sentence was up to the judge. Contrary to his claims suggesting otherwise, Davis has failed to establish by a "preponderance of the evidence" he was entitled to any relief. Miss.Code Ann. §99-39-23(7); McClendon v. State, 539 So.2d 1375 (Miss. 1989); Todd v. State, 873 So.2d 1040 (Ct.App. Miss. 2004).

## **ARGUMENT**

THE RECORD, CONSTRUED IN A LIGHT MOST FAVORABLE TO DAVIS, REFLECTS DAVIS, IN FACT, ENTERED VOLUNTARY PLEAS OF GUILTY TO THE M A N U F A C T U R E O F METHAMPHETAMINE, TWO COUNTS OF AGGRAVATED ASSAULT ON A PEACE OFFICER AND RECIDIVISM.

DAVIS'S CLAIM OF INEFFECTIVE

COUNSEL IS MATERIALLY CONTRADICTED BY THE GUILTY PLEA RECORD. DAVIS HAS FAILED TO SHOW THAT COUNSEL'S PERFORMANCE WAS DEFICIENT AND THAT THE DEFICIENT PERFORMANCE PREJUDICED HIS DEFENSE.

THE INDICTMENT WAS NOT DEFECTIVE. NEVERTHELESS, BY PLEADING GUILTY DAVIS WAIVED ANY NON-JURISDICTIONAL DEFECTS IN THE INDICTMENT.

DAVIS'S VOLUNTARY PLEAS OF GUILTY OPERATED TO WAIVE AND/OR FORFEIT HIS RIGHT TO ASSAIL IN A POST-CONVICTION ENVIRONMENT ALL NON-JURISDICTIONAL RIGHTS OR DEFECTS INCIDENT TO TRIAL, INCLUDING THE RIGHT TO HAVE THE STATE PROVE EACH ELEMENT OF THE OFFENSE BEYOND A REASONABLE DOUBT AND THE RIGHT TO PRESENT ANY DEFENSES TO THE CHARGE.

THE FACT-FINDING MADE BY THE CIRCUIT JUDGE FOLLOWING HIS REVIEW OF DAVIS'S PETITION AND THE RECORD OF HIS PLEAS WAS NEITHER CLEARLY ERRONEOUS NOR MANIFESTLY WRONG.

At the outset we point out that appellant has attached to his brief affidavits that are not found in the official record. (Brief of the Appellant at 59-65) In particular we point to the affidavit of Carol Redmond sworn to and subscribed by Redmond on July 25, 2007, six months after Judge Terry had already ruled on Davis's motion for post conviction relief.

This will not do at all. Regrettably, these papers, including Davis's three newly attached

affidavits signed by Davis on August 2, 2007 (C.P. at 59-64), cannot be considered here.

We are told in **Saucier v. State**, 328 So.2d 355, 357 (Miss. 1976), that the Supreme Court can act "... only on the basis of the contents of the official record, as filed after approved by counsel for both parties. It may not act upon statements in briefs or arguments of counsel which are not reflected by the record."

The case of **Wortham v. State**, 219 So.2d 923, 926-27 (1969), is particularly applicable. In **Wortham** an affidavit contained in appellant's brief could not be considered on appeal. This court opined:

\* \* \* \* \* Appellant attempts to raise this question by including in the brief filed by his counsel a photostatic copy of an affidavit alleged to have been filed in the justice of the peace court. We have always adhered to the rule that we will not consider anything on appeal except what is in the record made in the trial court. We will not go outside the record to find facts and will not consider a statement of facts attempted to be supplied by counsel in briefs. The rule is so well settled that it is unnecessary to cite authority to support it, but in spite of this we still get many cases where counsel seek to have us notice facts not in the record. This amounts to an exercise in futility and is a waste of time and effort. It should not be done. [emphasis supplied]

As stated in **Mason v. State**, 440 So.2d 318, 319 (Miss. 1983), this Court "... must decide each case by the facts shown in the record, not assertions in the brief, *however sincere* counsel may be in those assertions. Facts asserted to exist must and ought to be definitely proved and placed before [this Court] by a record, certified by law; otherwise, we cannot know them."

In Genry v. State, 735 So.2d 186, 200 (Miss. 1999), this Court opined:

\* \* \* \* \* \* The burden is on the defendant to make a proper record of the proceedings. Jackson v. State, 689 So.2d 760, 764 (Miss. 1997); Russell v. State, 670 So.2d 816, 822 n. 1 (Miss. 1995); Lambert v. State, 574 So.2d 573, 577 (Miss. 1990). This court "cannot decide an issue based on assertions in the brief alone; rather, issues must be proven by the record." Medina v. State, 688 So.2d 727, 732 (Miss. 1996); Robinson v. State, 662 So.2d 1100, 1104 (Miss. 1995). Accordingly, the matter is not properly before this Court. This assignment of error is without merit.

"We repeat . . . that on direct appeal we are confined to the record before us [and] that record gives us no basis for reversal." Watson v. State, 483 So.2d 1326, 1330 (Miss. 1986).

Many of the claims made by Davis in his brief are devoid of merit for this reason alone.

We reiterate!

"The burden is upon the defendant to make a proper record of the proceedings." Genry v. State, supra, 735 So.2d 186, 200 (Miss. 1999). See also Schuck v. State, 865 So.2d 1111 (Miss. 2003); Byrom v. State, 863 So.2d 836 (Miss. 2003); Steen v. State, 873 So.2d 155 (Ct.App.Miss. 2004), reh denied; Brown v. State, 875 So.2d 214 (Ct.App.Miss. 2003), reh denied.

Davis also raises issues and makes claims in his brief that were not presented to the trial judge in Davis's motion for post-conviction relief. We point in particular to questions number 1), 2), 4), 5) and 8) of the "Questions Presented" appearing in Davis's brief at pages XI-XII. These issues and claims, raised for the first time in his *pro se* appellate brief, cannot be considered for the first time on appeal. Davis, therefore, is procedurally barred from raising them in the present appeal. Foster v. State, 716 So.2d 538, 540 (Miss. 1998), citing Berdin v.

State, 648 So.2d 73, 80 (Miss. 1994) ["Because Foster did not raise this issue in his petition for post-conviction relief, its consideration is precluded on appeal."]

Our response in the case at bar addresses those claims raised by Davis in his motion for post-conviction relief and ruled upon by the circuit judge.

#### **Defective Indictment.**

Davis complained in his motion for post-conviction relief his indictment was improper because he had never served any confinement or jail time for the two prior offenses relied upon by the State in charging him as a recidivist under Miss.Code Ann. §99-19-81. (C.P. at 7)

The circuit judge found as a fact and concluded as a matter of law that "[t]he fact that Davis may not have served any time is irrelevant." (C.P. at 48) This finding of fact and conclusion of law was neither clearly erroneous nor manifestly wrong.

Miss. Code Ann. §99-19-83 requires *service* of "separate terms of one (1) year or more." §99-19-81, on the other hand, does not require service. Stated differently, actual "service" is not required for sentencing as a recidivist under §99-19-81. *See* Feazell v. State, 761 So.2d 140 (Miss. 2000); Otis v. State, 853 So.2d 856 (Ct.App.Miss. 2003).

In **Jackson v. State**, 518 So.2d 1219, 1220 (Miss. 1988), we find the following language applicable to Davis's complaint:

\* \* The appellant contends that concurrent sentences are not "separate terms" required by the statute [§99-19-81] for sentencing as a recidivist. There is no merit to this contention. The language of the statute requires simply sentencing to separate terms, specifically omitting the requirement that they must be served separately, or that they must be served at all. [emphasis supplied]

Davis also claimed in his motion for post-conviction relief "... that under our state's

criminal jurisprudence a multi-count indictment is inherently defective." (C.P. at 16) This argument is devoid of merit because Rule 7.07 of the Uniform Circuit and County Court Rules specifically authorizes multiple count indictments.

Davis's indictment, therefore, was not flawed one whit.

Moreover, assuming his pleas were voluntary, Davis waived his right to challenge the indictment as well as the evidence.

In Jefferson v. State, 556 So.2d 1016, 1019 (Miss. 1989), this Court opined:

We are concerned here with the legal effect of Jefferson's two 1981 guilty pleas. The institution of the guilty plea is well established in our criminal justice process. A guilty plea operates to waive the defendant's privilege against self-incrimination/2, the right to confront and cross-examine the prosecution's witnesses/3, the right to a jury trial/4 and the right that the prosecution prove each element of the offense beyond a reasonable doubt./5

Outside the constitutional realm, the law is settled that with only two exceptions, the entry of a knowing and voluntary guilty plea waives all other defects or insufficiencies in the indictment. [citations omitted] A defendant's right to claim that he is not the person named in the indictment may be waived if not timely asserted. Anselmo v. State, 312 So.2d 712 (Miss. 1975). The principle exception to the general rule is that the failure of the indictment to charge a criminal offense or, more specifically, to charge an essential element of a criminal offense, is not waived. See Durr v. State, 446 So.2d 1016, 1017 (Miss. 1984); Maxie v. State, 330 So.2d 277, 278 (Miss. 1976). And, of course, a guilty plea does not waive subject matter jurisdiction. [Text of notes 2-5 omitted; emphasis supplied]]

We find in **Anderson v. State**, *supra*, 577 So.2d 390, 391 (Miss. 1991), the following language also applicable to Young's complaint:

Moreover, we have recognized that a valid guilty plea operates as a waiver of all non-jurisdictional rights or defects which are incident to trial. *Ellzey v. State*, 196 So.2d 889, 892 (Miss. 1967). We have generally included in this class "those

[rights] secured by the Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States, as well as those comparable rights secured by Sections 14 and 26, Article 3, of the Mississippi Constitution of 1890." Sanders v. State, 440 So.2d 278, 283 (Miss. 1983); see also Jefferson v. State, 556 So.2d 1016, 1019 (Miss. 1989). We take this opportunity to specifically include in that class of waivable or forfeitable rights the right to a speedy trial, whether of constitutional or statutory origin.

This view is in accord with that of our sister states. [citations omitted]

This rule also prevails in the federal arena. [citations omitted; emphasis ours]

Stated differently, Michael Davis's voluntary pleas of guilty waived and forfeited all rights and non-jurisdictional defects incident to trial, including the right to a trial by jury, the right to subpoena and call witnesses in his own behalf, the right to a fast and speedy public trial, and the right to assail non-jurisdictional defects found in an indictment or information. **Drennan v. State**, 695 So.2d 581 (Miss. 1997); **Luckett v. State**, 582 So.2d 428 (Miss. 1991); **Anderson v. State**, *supra*, 577 So.2d 390 (Miss. 1991).

Because Davis entered voluntary pleas of guilty, he also waived any defenses he might have had to the charge, including any claim that when he fired two shots at law enforcement authorities he did not aim at anyone. (C.P. at 37)

## Involuntary Plea(s).

Davis argues his pleas were involuntary because his lawyer misadvised him that if he entered an open plea of guilty he would not be sentenced to any term longer than five (5) years.

Moreover, after two (2) years of incarceration Mr. Lusk would file a motion for reduction of sentence whereby all of Davis's "good time" would be applied to a reduced sentence. (Brief of Appellant at 7)

The record in this case fully supports our position and the position of the

circuit judge that Davis entered his pleas "with sufficient awareness of the relevant circumstances and likely consequences." Young v. State, No. 2006-CP-00114-COA (¶13) decided March 27, 2007 [Not Yet Reported], citing cases.

Admittedly, the transcript of the plea-qualification hearing is not included in the record filed in this cause.

No matter.

Judge Terry relied heavily on Davis's acknowledgment in paragraph 14. of Davis's petition to enter plea of guilty that Davis offered his plea(s) of guilty "freely and voluntarily and of [his] own accord and with full understanding of all the matters set forth in the indictment and in this petition and the certificate of my lawyer which follows."

The petition to enter plea of guilty was signed by Davis under the trustworthiness of the official oath and with full knowledge that willfully swearing falsely to any material matter under any oath was punishable by imprisonment for 10 years. (C.P. at 38)

The petition reflects in paragraph 7. Davis's awareness that the possible sentence for his crimes was 0 to 90 years and that the duration of the sentence in the wake of an "open plea" was up to the Court. (C.P. at 37) Such materially contradicts Davis's present claims.

The petition reflects in paragraph 14. Davis's acknowledgment in plain and ordinary English that his pleas were freely and voluntarily given. (C.P. at 38) These acknowledgments have got to stand for something. This is especially true where, as here, the circuit judge, in denying post-conviction relief, relied heavily upon Davis's petition to enter plea of guilty and the certificate of his lawyer. *See* **McKenzie v. State**, 856 So.2d 344, 351 (Ct.App.Miss. 2003).

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